UNITED
NATIONS E

Economic and Social Council
PROVI SI ONAL

E/ 1998/ SR 1

20 March 1998
ENGLI SH

ORI G NAL: FRENCH

Organi zati onal session for 1998
PROVI SI ONAL SUMVARY RECORD OF THE 1st MEETI NG

Hel d at Headquarters, New York,
on Thursday, 22 January 1998, at 10 a.m

Tenporary President: M. GALUSKA (Czech Republic)
Presi dent : M. SOVAVI A (Chile)
CONTENTS

OPENI NG OF THE SESSI ON

STATEMENT BY THE TEMPORARY PRESI DENT

DATE OF THE H G+ LEVEL SPECI AL MEETI NG OF THE ECONOM C AND SOCI AL COUNCI L

DATE OF THE ECONOM C AND SOCI AL COUNCI L' S 1998 SESSI ON ON | NTEGRATED AND

COORDI NATED | MPLEMENTATI ON AND FOLLOW UP OF THE MAJOR UNI TED NATI ONS CONFERENCES
AND SUMM TS

ELECTI ON OF THE PRESI DENT

ELECTI ON OF THE BUREAU

ADCPTI ON OF THE AGENDA AND OTHER ORGANI ZATI ONAL MATTERS

Corrections to this record should be subnmtted in one of the working
| anguages. They should be set forth in a menorandum and al so incorporated in a
copy of the record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this
docunent to the Chief, Oficial Records Editing Section, room DC2-750, 2 United
Nations Pl aza.

98- 80089 (E) /...



E/ 1998/ SR 1
Engl i sh
Page 2

The neeting was called to order at 10.20 a. m

OPENI NG OF THE SESSI ON

The TEMPORARY PRESI DENT decl ared open the organi zati onal session of
t he Economi ¢ and Social Council for 1998.
STATEMENT BY THE TEMPORARY PRESI DENT

The TEMPORARY PRESI DENT pointed out that, in 1997, the Council had
i ntroduced some inportant changes in its patterns of work: the high-1evel

segnent had ended with the adoption of agreed conclusions and the agenda of the
substantive session had been streanined so that the session could be fitted
into just four weeks. Consultations on the reformof the subsidiary organs had
begun, as requested in General Assenbly resolution 50/227. However, there was
still much to be done to nodernize the Council.

During the Council's deliberations in Geneva, in 1997, the Secretary-
General had introduced reform proposals which included proposals for reformin
the econom c and social sphere. Sone of the proposed changes had been endorsed
by the General Assenbly. It was now up to nmenbers of the Council to continue
the restructuring and reforns in order to achieve tangible results.

Anot her nmatter to be considered was the urgent matter of financial
resources for devel opment; consultations were under way on the issue. The
triennial policy review, which was to take place in 1998, could serve as a
framework for discussions on inproving the efficiency of operational activities.

In the forthcom ng negoti ations, delegations should refrain from engagi ng
in counter-productive oratorical battles which so often characterized debates
and undermned their effectiveness; even conplex issues could be discussed in a
sinple and straightforward manner. The Council woul d have to abandon its forner
practices and adopt a nore rational and pragmatic approach.

DATE OF THE H GH LEVEL SPECI AL MEETI NG OF THE ECONOM C AND SOCI AL COUNCI L
The TEMPORARY PRESI DENT said that since the General Assenbly had
recomrended that the Economic and Social Council should schedul e a special high-

level neeting at a time proximate to the sem -annual meetings of the Bretton
Wyods institutions, the Bureau had decided to schedule it for Saturday,



E/ 1998/ SR 1
Engl i sh
Page 3

18 April 1998. The thene for the meeting could be "global financial integration
and devel opment and recent issues".

M. NEBENZI A (Russi an Federation), speaking also on behal f of Belarus,
Georgia and Wkraine, said that those del egations attached great inportance to
the organi zation of joint nmeetings of the Council and of the governing bodi es of
the Bretton Wods institutions. However, they would have liked to see nore
consultations with Menber States before the neeting was announced. |t would
probabl y have been preferable to arrange a trial neeting and to see how it
wor ked out before organizing a nore anbitious one. Mreover the proposed date
posed problens for it coincided with the Holy Saturday of the Christian Othodox
Church whi ch woul d be cel ebrating Easter on Sunday, 19 April. Qher religions
had their holy days which were respected; it would be proper to have the same
respect for that Orthodox religious holiday. However, if Menber States chose to
go along with the date proposed the del egati ons on whose behal f he was speaki ng
woul d not oppose the decision but would nmerely point out that it should not
create a precedent.

M. GOODERHAM (United Ki ngdom), speaking on behalf of the States
nenbers of the European Union, said that while the European Union was, in

principle, in favour of having such a neeting in April, it regretted that the
neeting had been schedul ed on a Saturday norning. He pointed out that neetings
shoul d not, as a rule, be schedul ed on the weekend.

M. HENZE (Germany) said that it was his understandi ng that observers
woul d be able to participate in the meeting.

The TEMPORARY PRESI DENT confirnmed that understandi ng

M. EFFENDI (Cbserver for Indonesia), speaking on behalf of the Goup

of 77, recalled that it had been proposed that the high-level neeting should be
hel d before the neeting of the Devel opment Conmittee in Washington. Having the
neeting on the proposed date should not set a precedent. The neeting would be
the first of its kind and it was still possible to inprove the organization. He
poi nted out, in that connection, that the presence of Mnisters of nenbers of
the Goup of 77 was of the greatest inportance.

M. ROKANAS (Cbserver for Greece) said that his delegation fully
supported the statenent nade by the representative of the United Ki ngdom on
behal f of the European Union; it, too, had reservations concerning the date
proposed for the high-level neeting as it coincided with Holy Saturday which was

l...



E/ 1998/ SR 1

Engl i sh
Page 4
one of the major religious holidays for the Orthodox Christians. |t was

unfortunate that that had not been taken into account when schedul i ng neetings.
Greece had no intention of blocking a decision to hold the neeting on 18 Apri
if Menber States preferred that date, but it should not set a precedent.

M. N CULESCU (Ronani a) associated his delegation with the statenents
made by the representatives of Geece, the Russian Federation and the United

Ki ngdom and asked that, in future, such decisions should be taken in
consultation with all delegations. The choice of that date should not create a
precedent .

The TEMPORARY PRESI DENT said that the concerns expressed woul d be
noted. He took it that the Council w shed to agree to the date proposed for the

hi gh-1 evel neeting.
It was so decided

DATE OF THE ECONOM C AND SOCI AL COUNCI L' S 1998 SESSI ON ON | NTEGRATED AND
COORDI NATED | MPLEMENTATI ON AND FOLLOW UP OF THE MAJOR UNI TED NATI ONS CONFERENCES
AND SUMM TS

The TEMPORARY PRESI DENT said that the Bureau had agreed that session
shoul d be held from13 to 15 May 1998.

M. GOODERHAM (United Ki ngdom), speaking on behalf of the States
nenbers of the European Union, recalled that, in Decenber 1997, the Union had

asked the Bureau or the Secretariat to provide it with additional information
regarding the structure, thematic approach and conposition of the round-table
neetings planned within the context of that session before the organi zationa
session in February.

The TEMPORARY PRESI DENT said that the issue woul d be considered by the
new Bureau. He took it that the Council agreed to the dates proposed for the

sessi on.

It was so deci ded
ELECTI ON OF THE PRESI DENT

The TEMPORARY PRESI DENT inforned the Council that the Goup of Latin

Anerican and Cari bbean States had nominated M. Sonavia (Chile) for the post of
President of the Council for 1998.

M. Somavia (Chile) was el ected President by acclamation

M. Somavia (Chile) took the Chair.




E/ 1998/ SR 1
Engl i sh
Page 5

The PRESI DENT noted that he was assuming his functions at a time when

the United Nations and, in particular, the Econom ¢ and Social Council and its
subsi di ary bodi es were undergoing revitalization of their econom c and soci al
fields. He was convinced that, with the cooperation of all nenber States, the
Council could complete its extremely full progranme of work, which included
i ssues such as the reformof its subsidiary bodies and the introduction of new
net hods of work. Those inprovenents were essential if the Council was truly to
function as one of the principal United Nations bodies and if the question of
devel opnent was to play a key role in the Oganization's activities.
ELECTI ON OF THE BUREAU

The PRESI DENT said that in accordance with rule 18 of its rules of
procedure, the Council nust elect four Vice-Presidents. After consultations

bet ween the regional groups, the follow ng candi dates had been nom nat ed:
M. Fulci (ltaly), Goup of Wstern European and other States; M. Chowdhury
(Bangl adesh), G oup of Asian States; M. O haye (Dibouti), Goup of African
States; and M. Sychou (Belarus), Goup of Eastern European States.

M. Fulci (ltaly), M. Chowdhury (Bangl adesh), M. dhaye (Djibouti) and
M. Sychou (Bel arus) were elected Vice-Presidents of the Council for 1998 by
accl amati on.

M. EFFENDI (Cbserver for Indonesia), speaking on behalf of the Goup
of 77 and China, said that 1998 woul d be a demandi ng and chal | engi ng year for
t he Econom ¢ and Social Council, whose progranmme of work enconpassed conpl ex
econonmic, social and political issues to be considered in the various segnents
of the substantive session. Consideration of the reformof the Council was al so
of great inportance. Qher pertinent issues included the triennial review of
operational activities and the followup to the Wirld Sunmit for Socia
Devel opnent. The Group of 77 and China assured the President of their support
and pl edged their readiness to participate actively in the Council's work in
order to obtain fruitful results.

M. GOODERHAM (United Ki ngdon), speaking on behal f of the European
Union, said that the Council's programe of work was a heavy one and that the

European Union would do its utnmost to help inits inplementation with a viewto
improving the quality of the Council's work.



E/ 1998/ SR 1
Engl i sh
Page 6

Ms. KING (United States of Anerica) stressed the fact that the
restructuring of the Secretariat departnents responsible for econonic and soci al
questions and the strengthening of the Econom c and Social Council's secretariat
were centrepieces of the Secretary-General's reformprogramme. Those neasures
shoul d have a major inpact on the Council. However, the Bureau, which was
responsi bl e for ensuring coherence and continuity of work, had a key role to
play; informal neetings and consultations shoul d be organized frequently.

Several of the itens in the programme of work were of paranmount inportance
for the future of the Council and the role of the United Nations in the econonic
and social fields. |In particular, the Council had been instructed by the
General Assenbly to continue the inplenentation of resolution 50/227 and the
review of key elenents in the Secretary-CGeneral's Track Il reform programe.

Anot her nmajor event was the high-level meeting with the Bretton Wods
institutions, which, if properly prepared, could set the stage for a new and
nore productive interchange between various governing bodies of the United

Nati ons system The nost intriguing issue for the first half of the year was
the segnment on coordinated followup to nmajor conferences, which would have an
i mportant inpact not only on the Council's coordination role, but on its policy
di al ogue as well. O particular inmportance to the progranme of work of the
substantive session was the coordination segnent, which would include a review
of the Vienna Declaration and Programme of Action on the occasion of the
fiftieth anniversary of the Declaration of Human Rights. The Council would al so
hold its first humanitarian affairs segnent, thereby extending its coordination
and governing role to an inportant area of United Nations activity.

M. NEBENZI A (Russian Federation) said that it was inmportant for the
Council to increase the effectiveness of its work as the Organization's centra
coordi nati ng body since, by so doing, it would inprove the efficiency of al
United Nations activities in the econonm c and social fields.

H s del egation attached great inportance to inplenentation of the
provi sions of General Assenbly resolution 50/227, particularly those involving
consideration of the activities of the Council's subsidiary bodies. In that
regard, he wel coned the Council's adoption in Decenber 1997 of a decision
calling for mechanisnms for consultation on that matter. Hi s delegation also
supported the President's efforts to rationalize the Council's agenda,



E/ 1998/ SR 1
Engl i sh
Page 7

particularly within the framework of the Russian Federation's proposa
concerning the proclanation of international years

As a menber of the Goup of Eastern European States, the Russian Federation
considered it inportant that during 1998, as called for in General Assenbly
resol ution 50/8, the Council should begin to review the decision of the former
Committee on Food Aid Policies and Programmes to allocate to that G oup two
rather than four seats on the Executive Board of the Wrld Food Programe and
believed that there should be a return, as from1 January 2000, to the
di stribution of seats established in General Assenbly resolution 48/162.

H s del egation supported the Chilean proposal to organi ze a special session
of the Council on the coordination of neasures adopted in inplenentation of the
decisions taken at major United Nations international conferences. It asked the
Bureau to extend the nechanismfor consultation with nenber States to include
all agenda itens and to cooperate with the Council secretariat. Lastly, it
called on the President to increase cooperation between the Council and the
Admi ni strative Committee on Coordination (ACC).

H s delegation, for its part, would participate constructively in the
Council's work with a view to achieving consensus on all issues to be considered
and woul d support the President and the menbers of the Bureau in the ful fil ment
of their responsibilities.

M. DESAl (Under-Secretary-General for Economic and Social Affairs)
said that he understood the concerns expressed by certain del egati ons regarding
the decision to hold the high-1evel neeting on 18 April 1998 and enphasi zed t hat
that was a one-tinme decision. Because Mwnday, 13 April, was a holiday, the
Devel opnent Committee would neet from Tuesday to Friday during the current year
whereas it normally met from Monday to Thursday. Furthernmore, the Goup of 24
nmust convene in Washi ngton beforehand. Al options had been carefully
consi dered, and Saturday, 18 April, was the only possible date for the planned
neeting.

ADOPTI ON OF THE AGENDA AND OTHER ORGAN ZATI ONAL MATTERS (E/ 1998/2 and Corr. 1)

The PRESI DENT drew attention to the provisional agenda (E/ 1998/ 2 and
Corr.1) and said that with the adoption of its resolutions 1988/ 77 and 1989/ 14,
the Council had deci ded upon a nunber of measures ained at revitalizing and

inmproving its functioning. Further neasures to that end had been adopted by the
General Assenbly in its resolutions 45/264, 48/ 162 and 50/ 227. On the basis of

l...



E/ 1998/ SR 1
Engl i sh
Page 8

the guidelines set out in those resolutions, the council would have before it
for consideration at the organi zati onal session the provisional agenda for that
session (E/1998/2 and Corr.1) and a note by the Secretary-Ceneral containing a
proposed programme of work (E/1998/1). He also wished to draw the Council's
attention to matters in the provisional agenda which required action by the
Council at its organizational session

In conformity with the provisions of paragraph 2 (1) of Council resolution
1988/ 77, he intended to hold informal consultations on the proposed basic
programe of work and ot her organi zational matters, on the basis of which the
Bureau woul d subnmit recommendations to the Council at its next session. He
invited the Council to adopt the provisional agenda.

The provisional agenda was adopt ed.

The nmeeting rose at 11.20 a.m




